
To: Local Union 745 Trustee, James Buck 
From: Members of the Independent Review Board 
Re: Proposed Charges Against Local 745 Officers T.C. Stone, 

Jr., Charles Rogers, Allen Stanford and Tyson Johnson 
Date: September 17, 1996 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Independent Review Board recommends that charges be 
filed against Local 745 Secretary-Treasurer and Business Manager 
T.C. Stone, Jr. ("Stone")*, President Charles Rogers ("Rogers"), 
Trustee Allen Stanford ("Stanford") and Recording Secretary Tyson 
Johnson ("Johnson")^ for the following reasons. 

II. SUMMARY 

For decades officers at the Local have in violation of 
federal criminal law made interest-free loans in excess of $2,000 
each to themselves and other full-time officers and Business 
Agents through making advance payments for vacation pay. During 
that time, the Local loaned interest-free its current officers 
and Business Agents more than $750,000. In each of the last five 
years, Stone, Rogers, Stanford and Johnson authorized Local funds 
in excess of $2,000 per loan to be made to all eight of the Local 
745 full-time officers and Business Agents. In authorizing the 
loans reflected in the vacation pay advance checks, Stone, 
Rogers, Stanford and Johnson violated 29 U.S.C. Section 503 and 

* Stone is Secretary-Treasurer and Rogers is a Trustee of 
Joint Council 80. (Ex. 1) 

3 In addition to their elective offices, Rogers, Stanford, 
and Johnson are all employed as Local 745 Business Agents. 



violated IBT Constitution, Article II, Section 2(a) and Article 
XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2). 
III. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 

A. Advances of Officers' and Business Agents' Salary in 
Lieu of Vacations as Illegal Loans 

Section 503 of the Labor-Management Reporting and 
Disclosure Act of 1959 provides that: 

No labor organization shall make directly or indirectly 
any loan or loans to any officer or employee of such 
organization which results in a total indebtedness on 
the part of such officer or employee to the labor 
organization in excess of $2,000. 

29 U.S.C. Sec. 503(a).^ 
For decades Local 745 officers engaged in a scheme 

whereby Business Agents including officers, each year received 
from the Local interest-free advances for six week's vacation. 
From 1985 to 1996 the Local loaned its Business Agents more than 
$750,000 through advances for unused vacation time. (Ex. 2) 
Allegedly no one ever took vacation. As the Minutes of the 
Local's December 1, 1988 Executive Board Meeting noted: 

Secretary-Treasurer Haddock advised that for years and 
years, as long as he can remember, over 30 years, Local 
745's policy is that Business Agents do not take 
vacations, and instead of taking vacations, they are 
paid an extra check in lieu of. He explained that the 
agents needed that payment counted toward their pension 
as pension is paid on that check by the Employer and 
also the employee portion is deducted from same . . . 

(Ex. 3) At that meeting, the Executive Board adopted a 
Resolution that formalized the practice of payments in lieu of 

^ LMRDA Section 503(c) provides for criminal penalties of 
one year's imprisonment and a fine of not more than $5,000. 29 
U.S.C. Sec. 503(c). 
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vacations. That Resolution declared, in pertinent part: 
WHEREAS IT IS and has for many years been the practice 
of Teamsters Local Union 745 to issue an additional 
check to each of the Officer Agents and Business Agents 
for payment in lieu of vacation, 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that each of the Officer Agents 
and Business Agents employed by Teamsters Local 745 be 
issued this additional check each year to receive as 
part of their salary or wage, in lieu of vacation, to 
be designated in all respects as wage and or salary to 
which each of the Officer Agents and Business Agents 
are fully entitled based on their employment . . . 

(Ex. 4) 
Local 745 full-time officers and Business Agents are 

currently each entitled to six week's vacation each year.* (Ex. 
6 at 38; Ex. 7 at 46) Early each year, each of them completed an 
"authorization form" on which they indicated if they would use 
any of their vacation in that current year.^ (Exs. 9-20; see Ex. 
6 at 39; Ex. 7 at 46-47) The value of the vacation each 
indicated would not be used was advanced to the officer or 
business agent each year, depending on when the authorization 
form was completed. Since 1994 the advances were paid between 
February and April. (Ex. 21) In earlier years the lump sum 
payments in lieu of vacations were made at various times 

* Since at least 1990, all full-time officers and Business 
Agents have been entitled to six week's vacation. (Ex. 5) There 
was testimony that in prior years some officers or Business Agents 
were entitled to fewer than six weeks because they were less 
senior. (Ex. 6 at 39; Ex. 7 at 46) 

^ Stone testified that the authorization form they 
completed early each year for payment in lieu of vacation was for 
that year. (Ex. 6 at 30) The Local's Office Manager confirmed on 
June 24, 1996 that each year the payments in lieu of vacation were 
made for that year. (Ex. 8) There was no carry over of vacation 
from the prior year. (Id.) 
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beginning in January for some Business Agents, with the final 
Business Agent receiving his payment in or before September. 
(Id.) In all cases, these loans were made without interest being 
charged. 

The following is an example of the practice: on 
February 1, 1995, Rogers completed an "authorization form" on 
which he indicated that he would not use any vacation time in 
1995. (Ex. 19) On February 3 he received a check equivalent to 
six week's salary in the gross amount of $12,600 as payment in 
lieu of his entire 1995 vacation.^ (id.; Ex. 32) Because Rogers 
would have accrued one week's vacation for every two months 
worked, as of February 3, he would have accrued less than one 
week's vacation time. Assuming he had accrued a full week's 
vacation time by then, at most, Rogers would have been entitled 
to a $2100 payment in lieu of vacation for January and February.^ 
In advancing him payment for the entire year's vacation on 
February 3, Local 745 loaned him, interest free, $10,500 in 
violation of federal criminal law. This loan was authorized by 
Rogers and Stanford who also signed the check. 

The officers and Business Agents received their 1995 
payments in lieu of vacation on varying dates from February 3 to 

^ Rogers earned $2100 weekly between January 1, 1995 and 
July 20, 1995. (Ex. 22) In July his salary increased to $2,300 
weekly. (Id.) Then on November 2, 1995 it increased again to 
$2,375. fid.) 

^ There was no legal prohibition against an agent changing 
his mind and taking vacation later in the year. In giving credit 
for any accrued vacation time before year end, the Local officers 
are getting the benefit of any doubt. 
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April 28, 1995. (Exs. 19 and 21) The later in the year an 
officer received his payment, the more vacation time he would 
have accrued when he was paid for the full vacation. Thus, the 
amounts of the Local's loans to each officer and Business Agents 
varied depending on their earnings and the date of the vacation 
payment. (Id.) 

As demonstrated in the chart below, in each year from 
1991 to 1996, Local 745 made an illegal loan of more than $2,000 
to each full-time officer and Business Agent. Each loan made was 
interest-free and unsecured. 

Officer/ 

Business Agent 

1996 Originat 

Loan Amount' 

1995 Original 

Loan Amount 

1994 Original 

Loan Amount 

1993 Original 

Loan Amount 

1992 Originat 

Loan Amount 

1991 Origina) 

Loan Amount 

T.C. Stone $13,612 $9,675 $9,225 $8,200 $8,200 $8,200 
C. Rogers 13,337 10,500 11,000 9,000 11,000 11,000 
C. Knowles 8,662 6,400 5,800 2,900 2,900 2,175 
T. Johnson 9,625 7,200 6,525 5,075 5,075 5,075 
M. Kline 10,587 8,000 7,250 7,250 7,250 7,250 

A. 
Stanford 

11,687 9,000 7,425 7,425 7,425 7,425 

B. Baker 8,325 6,400 6,525 4,350 4,350 2,900 
J. Barlow 7,400 6,400 5,800 3,625 2,900 3,625 

Totals $83,235 $63,575 $59,550 $49,825 $47,100 $47,650 

Although not required under law to find a violation, 
Stone, Rogers, Stanford, and Johnson were on ample notice that 

s Loan amount as of the date the individual received his 
payment in lieu of vacation. (See Ex. 23) 
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the practice was illegal. The law is well-established and 
consistent with basic fiduciary obligations. Both under the 
Independent Administrator and the IRB, the Teamster magazine has 
reported actions emphasizing that loans over $2,000 were 
prohibited. (Exs. 24 and 25) Indeed, that salary advances in 
excess of $2,000 constitute loans in violation of the statute was 
explicitly addressed by the Independent Administrator. 
Investigations Officer v. Burke. Decision of the Independent 
Administrator, (October 1, 1992) (Ex. 26 at 19-21), aff'd. United 
States v. IBT. 817 F. Supp. 337 (1993); see Investigations 
Officer v. Ligurotis, Decision of the Independent Administrator 
(October 27, 1992 at 11)) (Ex. 27) 

It is unnecessary that the officers who made the 
payments know that the vacation pay advances were loans. See 
Investigations Officer v. Burke. (Ex. 26 at 21). Conduct in 
violation of the statute must be willful. (Id.) Here, the 
officers systematically made the loans year after year. It was 
not accidental; there is no question that the officers' conduct 
was willful. 

In each instance, the Local issued checks to the 
Business Agents for advance payments in lieu of vacation that had 
not yet accrued. (Exs. 28-33) Typically Stone and Rogers signed 
the checks. (Id.) Of the 48 vacation advance checks issued 
between 1991 and 1996, Stone and Rogers together signed 38. 
(Id.) From 1992 to 1996, Trustee Stanford signed nine checks 
with either Stone or Rogers. (Exs. 29-33) 
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Although representing only one incident, because it 
appears to have been signed by an unauthorized person under the 
Local bylaws, the forty-eighth check, number 012398 to Barlow on 
August 4, 1992, signed by Recording Secretary Tyson Johnson and 
Trustee Stanford is doubly significant. (Ex. 29) Local 745 
bylaw Section 8(B)(3) provides that: 

The President and/or the Secretary-Treasurer shall sign 
all checks. No check shall be honored without two 
signatures thereon, one of which must be either of the 
President or Secretary-Treasurer and the other such 
person designated by the Executive Board. 

(Ex. 34 at 13) Neither the President nor the Secretary-Treasurer 
signed check number 012398. Moreover, although Stanford had been 
designated to sign Local checks^, there was no indication in 
Executive Board Meeting Minutes from January 1985 to December 
1995, that Johnson was so designated. 

Between 1991 and March 1996, Stone signed checks 
advancing money for unaccrued vacation pay totalling, at least, 
$359,085. (See Exs. 28-33) Rogers signed a total of $361,364 of 
such checks. (Id.) The checks Stanford signed totalled $80,312 
in payments in lieu of vacations. (Ex. 28-33) The check Johnson 
signed was for an $8,279 payment to Barlow, of which, at least, 
$3,625 was an illegal loan. (Ex. 29) 

^ Stanford was added to the Local's bank signature cards 
for all Local 745 accounts by Executive Board action of January 3, 
1989. (Ex. 35 at 2) 

7 



B. The Loans Were Concealed From the Members and the IBT 
The nature of the loan scheme allowed the officers to 

conceal it from the members. By the end of each year each 
employee's loan would have been fully repaid because of the 
employee's accrual of six week's vacation that was never charged. 
(Ex. 36) Because the loans were not outstanding at year end, 
this pattern would not require the loans to be reported on the 
Forms LM-2. Consequently the unsecured, interest-free loans from 
Local funds the officers received every year were not revealed to 
the members.*" 

Additionally, pursuant to Article X, Section 8(a) of 
the IBT Constitution, the Local's Trustees were required to 
complete monthly Trustees' Reports. Several items on the 
Trustees' Reports required the loans to be reported. The Local 
745 Trustees failed to report the loans on the available 
Trustees' Reports from January 1985 through May 1996. (Ex. 37-
48) 

The Statement of Assets, line 6, the Trustees' Reports 
in use from 1991 to the end of 1994 required a report of the 
Local's "Loans and Notes Receivable." (Exs. 43-46) From 
February to November of each year from 1991 to 1994, the Local's 
Trustees failed to disclose the outstanding loans to the officers 

*°See Investigations Officer v. Burke. Decision of the 
Independent Administrator, (October 1, 1992) (Ex. 27 at 19-24) 
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and Business Agents." (Id.) The loans also should have been 
reflected on line 39 of the "Cash Paid Out" section and in the 
corresponding Schedule F, "Other Activities" on the line 
designated "Loans Made." (Id.) They were not. 

In 1995 the format of the Trustees' Reports changed. 
(Compare Exs. 43-46 with Exs. 47-48) There was no longer a line 
6 for disclosing loans and notes receivable. (Id.) However, as 
on the earlier reports, the Trustees should have disclosed the 
loans on line 39 of the "Cash Paid Out" section and in the 
corresponding Schedule F under "Other Activities" as "Loans 
Made." After 1994, the loans should also have been disclosed in 
the Statement of Assets on line 12, "Other Assets." Yet, the 
loans were not disclosed at any time on any line. (Exs. 37-48) 

IV. PROPOSED CHARGE 

Based upon the foregoing, it is recommended that Local 
745 officers T.C. Stone, Jr., Charles Rogers, Allen Stanford and 
Tyson Johnson be charged as follows: 
Charge 

While officers of Local 745 you brought reproach upon 
the IBT in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, 
Section 7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT Constitution, and breached 
your fiduciary duties to the members by directly and indirectly 
making illegal loans to the Local's officers and Business Agents, 

" Because of the fact that the aggregate loan amounts 
decreased over time as additional months were worked, the amount of 
the receivable due to the Local each month varied. (Ex. 25) 
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to wit: 
During the period from 1991 to the present, through 

signing checks you caused the Local to extend illegal loans in 
the form of vacation advances to the Local's officers and 
Business Agents, in some cases, including yourselves. In each 
instance, the checks you signed constituted loans in excess of 
$2,000 in violation of federal criminal statute 29 U.S.C. Section 
503(a). 
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EXHIBIT LIST FOR PROPOSED CHARGES AGAINST 
LOCAL 745 OFFICERS T.C. STONE, JR., 

CHARLES ROGERS, ALLEN STANFORD. AND TYSON JOHNSON 
Ex. 1 Excerpt from Cross-Reference Manual: Directory of IBT 

and IBT Affiliates Officers and Employees 
Ex. 2 Schedule of Vacation Pay 1985-1996 
Ex. 3 December 1, 1988 Executive Board Minutes 
Ex. 4 December 1, 1988 Executive Board Resolution 
Ex. 5 September 11, 1990 Letter from Secretary/Treasurer T.C. 

Stone to Special Investigator Richard Murray 
Ex. 6 Transcript of the Sworn Examination of T.C. Stone, Jr. 
Ex. 7 Transcript of the Sworn Examination of Charles Rogers 
Ex. 8 June 24, 1996 Memorandum to Files of Special 

Investigator Richard Murray 
Ex. 9 1985 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 10 1986 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 11 1987 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 12 1988 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 13 1989 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 14 1990 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 15 1991 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 16 1992 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 17 1993 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 18 1994 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 19 1995 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 20 1996 Vacation Pay Authorization Forms 
Ex. 21 1991--1996 Vacation Advance Schedules 
Ex. 22 Local 745 Wage and Expense Records for 
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Schedule of Officers' and Business Agents Annual 
Vacation Pay 
Excerpts from January/February, June and September 1993 
Teamster Magazine 
Excerpt from April/May 1993 Teamster Magazine 
Investigations Officer v. Burke, Decision of the 
Independent Administrator, (October 1, 1992) 
Investigations Officer v. Licrurotis, Decision of the 
Independent Administrator (October 27, 1992 
Schedule of Checks and Copies of 1991 Local 745 Checks 
for Payment in Lieu of Vacation 
Copies of 1992 Local 745 Checks for Payment in Lieu of 
Vacation 
Copies of 1993 Local 745 Checks for Payment in Lieu of 
Vacation 
Copies of 1994 Local 745 Checks for Payment in Lieu of 
Vacation 
Copies of 1995 Local 745 Checks for Payment in Lieu of 
Vacation 
Copies of 1996 Local 745 Checks for Payment in Lieu of 
Vacation 
Local 745 Bylaws 
January 3, 1989 Executive Board Minutes 
1991-1996 Schedule of Loans Outstanding Through 
Vacation Pay 
1985 Trustees' Reports 
1986 Trustees' Reports 
1987 Trustees' Reports 
1988 Trustees' Reports 
1989 Trustees' Reports 
1990 Trustees' Reports 
1991 Trustees' Reports 
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Ex. 44 1992 Trustees' Reports 
Ex. 45 1993 Trustees' Reports 
Ex. 46 1994 Trustees' Reports 
Ex. 47 1995 Trustees' Reports 
Ex. 48 1996 Trustees' Reports 
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
444 North Capitol St., NW, Suite 528 

Washington, DC 20001 
(202) 434-8080 

Facsimile (202) 434-8084 
Corruption Hotline (800) CALL IRB 

Chief Investigator: 
Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
17 Battery Place, Suite 331 
New York, NY 10004 

Administrator: 
John J. Cronin, Jr. 

Board Members: 
Grant Crandall, Esq. 

Crandall, Pyles & Haviland 
1021 Quarrier Street 

Charleston, WV 25301 
Frederick B. Lacey, Esq. 

LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae 
One Riverfront Plaza 

Newark, NJ 07102-5490 
William H. Webster, Esq. 

Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy 
1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 1100 

Washington, DC 20006 
August 4, 1997 

General President Ron Carey 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters 
25 Louisiana Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

Re: Decision on Charges against Local 745 
Members Stone, Stanford, Rogers, Johnson 
and Barlow 

Dear Mr. Carey: 
The Independent Review Board has reviewed your decision of 

July 1, 1997, in the above-captioned matter, and finds the decision 
not inadequate with regard to Stone, Stanford and Rogers, and 
inadequate as to penalty with regard to Johnson. 

Very truly yours, 

Members of the 
Independent Review Board 

cc: Earl V. Brown, Jr., Esq. 
David Neigus, Esq. 

Pursuant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y. 
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV 4486 (DNE) 



! N T E R N A T ) O N A L 
B R O T H E R H O O D O F T E A M S T E R S 

AFL-CIO 

OFFICE OF 
RON CAREY 

GENERAL PRESIDENT 

July 1, 1997 

By Express Mail 
Mr. T.C. Stone 
P.O. Box 571 
Kaufman, TX 75142 

By UPS, Next Day Air 
Mr. James Barlow 
670 Bailey Road 
El Paso, TX 79932 

By UPS, Next Day Air 
Mr. Allen Stanford 
18325 State Highway 274 
Kemp, TX 75143-5356 

By UPS, Next Day Air 
Mr. Charles Rogers 
3809 Larkin Lane 
Garland, TX 75043 

By UPS, Next Day Air 
Mr. Tyson Johnson 
513 Ridgeview 
Murphy, TX 75094 

Re: Article XIX Charges filed by temporary 
Trustee Jim Buck against Local 745 Members 
T.C. Stone, Jr., Allen Stanford, Charles 
Rogers, Tyson Johnson, and James Barlow 

Dear Sirs and Brothers: 

Enclosed is my decision on the above referenced Article XIX 
charges against you. 

ce 

Sn Carey, 
General Pre^ 

Enclosures 
cc: Jim Buck, Local 745 Trustee 

Hearing Panel 
Independent Review Board 

RC\mcd 
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INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS 

In the Matter of: 

ARTICLE XIX CHARGES 

against 

LOCAL 745 MEMBERS T.C. STONE, JR., 
ALLEN STANFORD, CHARLES ROGERS, 
TYSON JOHNSON, AND JAMES BARLOW 

DECISION 

Having carefully reviewed and considered the hearing record 
and the attached recommendation of the hearing panel in the 
above-referenced case, I make the following decision on Article 
XIX charges filed by the Local 745 temporary Trustee James Buck 
against T.C. Stone, Jr., Allen Stanford, Charles Rogers, Tyson 
Johnson, and James Barlow, all former Local 745 officers or 
business agents. 

Findings 

The first charge, against Brothers Stone, Stanford, Rogers, 
and Johnson, was referred to Brother Buck by the Independent 
Review Board ("IRB"). This charge alleges that the charged 
parties improperly authorized vacation pay in lieu of vacation 
before the vacation pay had been earned or accrued to themselves 
each other and other officers and agents. The charge also allege 
that the authorization of payment of this vacation pay before it 
was earned or accrued constituted loans by the Local Union in 
excess of $2,000, in violation of federal law. 

The hearing panel found this charge proven for each of the 
charged parties. It recommended that each of the charged parties 
be found guilty of bringing reproach upon the union in violation 
of Article II, Section 2(a) of the IBT Constitution and of 
breaching their fiduciary duties in violation of Article XIX, 
Sections 7(b)(1) and (2) of the Constitution. The hearing panel 
also recommended that the charged parties be found guilty by 
their conduct of violating federal labor law (29 U.S.C. Section 
503) by accepting loans in excess of $2,000 from the Local Union 
I concur with the findings and recommendations of the panel on 
this charge. 

The second charge alleges that Brother Stone entered into 
two sham collective bargaining agreements with an owner of 
management consulting firms so that he and his family could 
obtain health and welfare benefits available only to union 
members and their families. The contracts at issue covered only 
one employee--the employer's wife. 



The panel found this charge proven. They recommended that 
Brother Stone be found guilty of bringing reproach upon the union 
and breaching his fiduciary duty to the members, in violation of 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2) 
of the IBT Constitution by entering into these sham contracts 
with an employer to provide the employer and his family with 
health benefits only union members are entitled to. I concur 
with the findings and recommendations of the panel on this 
charge. 

The third charge alleges that then Local 745 business agent 
Jim Barlow embezzled $3,473.90 from Local 745 by his receipt in 
1987 of a double payment for vacation pay, in violation of 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b) (1), (2), 
and (3) of the IBT Constitution. The hearing panel found this 
charge proven. However, the panel found that because the conduct 
at issue occurred more than five(5) years before the charge was 
filed, it was barred by Article XIX, Section 7(a) of the 
Constitution. I concur with the findings and recommendations of 
the panel on this charge. 

Penalties 

Consistent with the above findings and the charged parties' 
relative culpability, I impose the following penalties: 

T. C. Stone, Jr.: The hearing panel recommended that 
Brother Stone be suspended from membership for five (5) years for 
entering into a sham contract with an employer to provide that 
employer's family with health benefits. The panel also 
recommended that Brother Stone be suspended from membership for 
an additional three (3) years for authorizing improper payments 
of vacation pay to himself and other officers and agents before 
it was earned or accrued. According to the IRB's report on the 
charges, Brother Stone co-signed 38 of the 48 vacation pay 
advance checks issued to officers and agents between 1991 and 
1996, for a total of $359,085. He also received approximately 
$57,112 in vacation pay advances between 1991 and 1996. The panel 
further recommended that Brother Stone be fined $13,000. The 
panel calculated this penalty as the approximate value, in terms 
of Brother Stone's salary, of one week of vacation pay for each 
of the five years in which Brother Stone authorized and received 
vacation pay loans from 1991 to 1996, plus interest on those 
loans. 

I agree with the panel's recommended penalty, except for the 
recommended fine. Accordingly, Brother Stone is hereby suspended 
from membership for eight years, effective on the date of this 
decision. He is also barred for eight years (8) from all 
positions, including consulting, in the IBT or any affiliate. He 
is barred for eight (8) years from accepting any money or 
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compensation from the IBT or any of its affiliates, except for 
fully vested pension benefits. 

Charles Rogers: The hearing panel recommended that Brother 
Rogers be suspended from membership for a total of three (3) 
years. According to the IRB's report, Brother Rogers co-signed 
38 of the 48 vacation pay advance checks issued to officers and 
agents between 1991 and 1996, for a total of $361,364. He also 
received approximately $65,837.00 in vacation pay advances 
between 1991 and 1996.^ 

I agree with the panel's recommendation. Accordingly, 
Brother Rogers is hereby suspended from membership for three (3) 
years, effective on the date of this decision. He is also barred 
for three (3) years from all positions, including consulting, in 
the IBT or any affiliate. He is barred for three (3)years from 
accepting any money or compensation from the IBT or any of its 
affiliates, except for fully vested pension benefits. 

Allen Stanford: The hearing panel recommended that Brother 
Stanford because of his lesser culpability be suspended from 
membership for one (1) year. According to the' IRB's report, 
Brother Stanford co-signed nine (9) vacation pay advance checks 
issued to officers and agents between 1992 and 1996, for a total 
of $80,312. He also received approximately $50,387.00 in vacation 
pay advances between 1991 and 1996. 

I agree with the panel's recommendation. Accordingly, 
Brother Stanford is hereby suspended from membership for one (1) 
year, effective on the date of this decision. He is also barred 
for one (1) year from all positions, including consulting, in the 
IBT or any affiliate. He is barred for one (1) year from 
accepting any money or compensation from the IBT or any of its 
affiliates, except for fully vested pension benefits. 

Tyson Johnson: The hearing panel recommended that Brother 
Johnson be reprimanded based on the fact that he co-signed only 
one improper vacation check and because the circumstances 
indicated that his actions were neither knowing or willful. The 

'The panel found that the record did not prove that Brother 
Rogers himself received any vacation pay before it was earned or 
accrued. I must disagree with this finding'.' The record, including 
the IRB's reports and exhibits, establish that Brother Rogers 
received vacation pay before it was earned and accrued. While the 
record is not entirely clear as to Brother Rogers' precise 
employment date in approximately 1965, the record unambiguously 
shows that Brother Rogers received his vacation pay for the prior 
year earlier and earlier in each succeeding year, so that by 1995, 
he was receiving pay for six weeks of 1995 vacation on or about 
February 1, 1995. 
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check was a $8,279 payment to Barlow, of which at least $3,625 
was an illegal loan. Brother Johnson himself received 
approximately $38,575 in illegal vacation pay advances between 
1991 and 1996. 

While I agree with the panel that Brother Johnson's co-
signing of only one improper check warrants a lesser penalty than 
that imposed on other officers who authorized more checks for 
larger amounts, I find that his co-signing of that check, when he 
knew or should have known Brother Barlow's vacation pay had not 
been earned or accrued, and when he had no authority under the 
bylaws to co-sign checks, warrants a greater penalty than that 
recommended by the panel. Accordingly, Brother Johnson is 
suspended from membership for one month, effective on the date of 
this decision. He is also barred for that period from all 
positions, including consulting, in the IBT or any affiliate. He 
is barred for one month from accepting any money or compensation 
from the IBT or any of its affiliates, except for fully vested 
pension benefits. 

Jim Barlow: While the hearing panel found Brother Barlow 
guilty of embezzlement of local union funds, as charged, the 
charges must be dismissed pursuant to Article XIX, Section 7(a) 
of the IBT Constitution because the misconduct occurred more than 
five years before the discovery of the misconduct. 
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